
Phil Norrey
Chief Executive (DCC)

To: The Chair and Members of the 
Heart of the South West 
(HotSW) Local Enterprise 
Partnership (LEP) Joint 
Scrutiny Committee

(see below)

County Hall
Topsham Road
Exeter
Devon 
EX2 4QD

Your ref : Date : 9 October 2019 Email: stephanie.lewis@devon.gov.uk
Our ref : Please ask for : Stephanie Lewis 01392 382486

HEART OF THE SOUTH WEST (HOTSW) LOCAL ENTERPRISE PARTNERSHIP (LEP) 
JOINT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Thursday, 17th October, 2019

A meeting of the Heart of the South West (HotSW) Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) Joint Scrutiny 
Committee is to be held on the above date, at 2.15 pm at Committee Suite - County Hall to consider 
the following matters.

PHIL NORREY
Chief Executive

A G E N D A

1 Election of Chair 

2 Election of Vice Chair 

3 Apologies 

PART I - OPEN COMMITTEE

4 Minutes (Pages 1 - 4)

Minutes of the meeting held on 20 June 2019, attached. 

5 Items Requiring Urgent Attention 

Items which in the opinion of the Chair should be considered at the meeting as matters of 
urgency.



MATTERS FOR CONSIDERATION OR REVIEW

6 Joint Scrutiny LEP Review (Pages 5 - 16)

A review of the Heart of the South West Local Enterprise Partnership Joint Scrutiny 
Committee, attached. 

7 Digital Activity 

A Presentation from the Head of Economic Development and the Chief Executive of the 
Heart of the South West (HotSW) Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) Board. 

MATTERS FOR INFORMATION

8 Scrutiny Work Programme 

In accordance with previous practice, Scrutiny Committees are requested to review the 
list of forthcoming business and determine which items are to be included in the Work 
Programme. 

The Scrutiny Work Programme can be found at: 
https://new.devon.gov.uk/democracy/committee-meetings/scrutiny-
committees/scrutinywork-programme/

9 Dates of Future Meetings 

Thursday 13 February 2020 @ 2.15pm
Thursday 11 February 2021 @ 2.15 pm
Thursday 22 October 2020 @ 2.15 pm
Thursday 18 June 2020 @ 2.15 pm

PART II - ITEMS WHICH MAY BE TAKEN IN THE ABSENCE OF PRESS AND 
PUBLIC ON THE GROUNDS THAT EXEMPT INFORMATION MAY BE DISCLOSED

NIL

Members are reminded that Part II Reports contain confidential information and should therefore be 
treated accordingly.  They should not be disclosed or passed on to any other person(s).
Members are also reminded of the need to dispose of such reports carefully and are therefore invited to 
return them to the Democratic Services Officer at the conclusion of the meeting for disposal.

https://new.devon.gov.uk/democracy/committee-meetings/scrutiny-committees/scrutinywork-programme/
https://new.devon.gov.uk/democracy/committee-meetings/scrutiny-committees/scrutinywork-programme/


Membership 
Councillors J Brook (Chair), R Hosking, J Brazil, R Bloxham, M Lewis, R Williams (Vice-Chair), A Brown, 
S Coles, G Derrick, J Morris, L Howgate, K Kennedy, B Spencer, N Cavill, R Chesterton and I Dyer

Declaration of Interests

Members are reminded that they must declare any interest they may have in any item to be considered at this 
meeting, prior to any discussion taking place on that item.

Access to Information

Any person wishing to inspect any minutes, reports or lists of background papers relating to any item on this 
agenda should contact Stephanie Lewis on 01392 382486. 

Agenda and minutes of the Committee are published on the Council’s Website 

Webcasting, Recording or Reporting of Meetings and Proceedings

The proceedings of this meeting may be recorded for broadcasting live on the internet via the ‘Democracy 
Centre’ on the County Council’s website.  The whole of the meeting may be broadcast apart from any 
confidential items which may need to be considered in the absence of the press and public. For more 
information go to: http://www.devoncc.public-i.tv/core/

In addition, anyone wishing to film part or all of the proceedings may do so unless the press and public are 
excluded for that part of the meeting or there is good reason not to do so, as directed by the Chairman.  Any 
filming must be done as unobtrusively as possible from a single fixed position without the use of any additional 
lighting; focusing only on those actively participating in the meeting and having regard also to the wishes of 
any member of the public present who may not wish to be filmed.  As a matter of courtesy, anyone wishing to 
film proceedings is asked to advise the Chair or the Democratic Services Officer in attendance so that all 
those present may be made aware that is happening. 

Members of the public may also use Facebook and Twitter or other forms of social media to report on 
proceedings at this meeting.  An open, publicly available Wi-Fi network (i.e. DCC) is normally available for 
meetings held in the Committee Suite at County Hall.  For information on Wi-Fi availability at other locations, 
please contact the Officer identified above.

Emergencies 

In the event of the fire alarm sounding leave the building immediately by the nearest available exit, following 
the fire exit signs.  If doors fail to unlock press the Green break glass next to the door. Do not stop to collect 
personal belongings, do not use the lifts, do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 

Mobile Phones 

Please switch off all mobile phones before entering the Committee Room or Council Chamber

If you need a copy of this Agenda and/or a Report in another 
format (e.g. large print, audio tape, Braille or other languages), 
please contact the Information Centre on 01392 380101 or email 
to: centre@devon.gov.uk or write to the Democratic and Scrutiny 
Secretariat at County Hall, Exeter, EX2 4QD.

Induction loop system available

http://www.devoncc.public-i.tv/core/
mailto:centre@devon.gov.yk


Terms of Reference 

1. The Joint Scrutiny Committee provides strategic overview and Scrutiny of the activities of the 
Heart of the South West (HotSW) Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP)

2. In meeting its purpose, the Joint Scrutiny Committee will be specifically charged with:
 

 The review of strategic decisions made by the LEP Board;

 The review of progress of programmes under the management of the LEP to identify barriers 
to progress, good practice and possible improvements to the LEP’s programme management 
function, notwithstanding the ability of Local Authorities to scrutinise individual programmes of 
delivery which impact on their communities;

 Scrutiny of the delivery of the Strategic Economic Plan and the Productivity Strategy; and

 To review LEP performance and consider any comparative data the Joint Committee deems 
necessary.



NOTES FOR VISITORS
All visitors to County Hall, including visitors to the Committee Suite and the Coaver Club conference and meeting rooms 
are requested to report to Main Reception on arrival.  If visitors have any specific requirements or needs they should 
contact County Hall reception on 01392 382504 beforehand. Further information about how to get here can be found at: 
https://new.devon.gov.uk/help/visiting-county-hall/. Please note that visitor car parking on campus is limited and space 
cannot be guaranteed. Where possible, we encourage visitors to travel to County Hall by other means.

SatNav – Postcode EX2 4QD

Walking and Cycling Facilities
County Hall is a pleasant twenty minute walk from Exeter City Centre. Exeter is also one of six National Cycle 
demonstration towns and has an excellent network of dedicated cycle routes – a map can be found at: 
https://new.devon.gov.uk/travel/cycle/. Cycle stands are outside County Hall Main Reception and Lucombe House 

Access to County Hall and Public Transport Links
Bus Services K, J, T and S operate from the High Street to County Hall (Topsham Road).  To return to the High Street 
use Services K, J, T and R.  Local Services to and from Dawlish, Teignmouth, Newton Abbot, Exmouth, Plymouth and 
Torbay all stop in Barrack Road which is a 5 minute walk from County Hall. Park and Ride Services operate from Sowton, 
Marsh Barton and Honiton Road with bus services direct to the High Street. 

The nearest mainline railway stations are Exeter Central (5 minutes from the High Street) and St David’s and St Thomas’s 
both of which have regular bus services to the High Street. Bus Service H (which runs from St David’s Station to the High 
Street) continues and stops in Wonford Road (at the top of Matford Lane shown on the map) a 2/3 minute walk from 
County Hall, en route to the RD&E Hospital (approximately a 10 minutes walk from County Hall, through Gras Lawn on 
Barrack Road).

Car Sharing
Carsharing allows people to benefit from the convenience of the car, whilst alleviating the associated problems of 
congestion and pollution.  For more information see: https://liftshare.com/uk/community/devon. 

Car Parking and Security
There is a pay and display car park, exclusively for the use of visitors, entered via Topsham Road.  Current charges are: 
Up to 30 minutes – free; 1 hour - £1.10; 2 hours - £2.20; 4 hours - £4.40; 8 hours - £7. Please note that County Hall 
reception staff are not able to provide change for the parking meters.

As indicated above, parking cannot be guaranteed and visitors should allow themselves enough time to find alternative 
parking if necessary.  Public car parking can be found at the Cathedral Quay or Magdalen Road Car Parks (approx. 20 
minutes walk). There are two disabled parking bays within the visitor car park. Additional disabled parking bays are 
available in the staff car park. These can be accessed via the intercom at the entrance barrier to the staff car park.

        NB                                 Denotes bus stops

Fire/Emergency Instructions
In the event of a fire or other emergency please note the following instructions. If you discover a fire, immediately inform 
the nearest member of staff and/or operate the nearest fire alarm. On hearing a fire alarm leave the building by the 
nearest available exit.  The County Hall Stewardesses will help direct you. Do not stop to collect personal belongings and 
do not use the lifts.  Assemble either on the cobbled car parking area adjacent to the administrative buildings or in the car 
park behind Bellair, as shown on the site map above. Please remain at the assembly point until you receive further 
instructions.  Do not re-enter the building without being told to do so.

First Aid
Contact Main Reception (extension 2504) for a trained first aider. 

A J

https://new.devon.gov.uk/help/visiting-county-hall/
https://new.devon.gov.uk/travel/cycle/
https://liftshare.com/uk/community/devon




HEART OF THE SOUTH WEST (HOTSW) LOCAL ENTERPRISE PARTNERSHIP (LEP) 
JOINT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

20/06/19

HEART OF THE SOUTH WEST (HOTSW) LOCAL ENTERPRISE PARTNERSHIP 
(LEP) JOINT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

20 June 2019 

Present:-

Councillors R Williams (Vice-Chair), J Brazil, G Derrick, R  Hosking, J Lock and J Morris

Apologies:-

Councillors J Brook, R Bloxham, M Lewis, C A Paul and L Howgate

Members attending in accordance with Standing Order 25

Councillor Hodgson

* 16  Minutes

(Councillor Hodgson attended in accordance with Standing Order 25(2) and spoke to this 
item).

RESOLVED that the Minutes of the meeting held on 14 February 2019 be signed as a correct 
record, subject to the correction of Minute *13 (Inclusive Growth) with the addition under bullet 
point 5 to read: “the challenge of social inclusivity in a largely rural area and environmental 
impacts;” and the inclusion of an additional bullet point to read “a lack of reference to 
renewable energies and tourism as growth potential within the programme”. 

* 17  Items Requiring Urgent Attention

There was no item raised as a matter of urgency.

* 18  Local Industrial Strategy

(Councillor Hodgson attended in accordance with Standing Order 25(2) and spoke to this 
item).

The Committee considered the Report of the Chief Executive of the Local Enterprise 
Partnership which updated the Committee on the LEP performance report from CLGU and 
improvement plan and also shared the work in progress on the emerging Local Industrial 
Strategy which was due to be discussed by the Joint Committee in July 2019.

The Report gave the headline achievements since the last meeting which included the 
revised articles for the LEP which had been submitted, the Institute of Technology bid was 
successful and the expression of interest for the Environmental Technologies accelerator was 
also successful. £255,000 for Digital Momentum from the Digital Skills pilot had been secured 
as well as £53m Housing Infrastructure Fund (HIF) funding for South-west Exeter to support 
housing growth in the wider Exeter area. There were also other highlights, including recipients 
of the Coastal Communities Fund, a relaunch of the GSW APPG at the House of Commons, 
and £75,000 received for the Skills Advisory Panel. 

Other schemes in the pipeline included Stronger Towns Funding (for the south west) which 
was confirmed but the prospectus (from MHCLG) and the UK Shared Prosperity Fund was 
not yet issued.

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



HEART OF THE SOUTH WEST (HOTSW) LOCAL ENTERPRISE PARTNERSHIP (LEP) JOINT 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
20/06/19

In relation to Performance, Appendix 1 set out the conclusions of the Annual Performance 
Review from CLGU following the LEP’s submission (which had been previously shared with 
the Scrutiny Committee) and subsequently, a Delivery and Improvement Plan for the 
forthcoming 12 months was attached at Appendix 2 of the Report. 

On the Local Industrial Strategy, the Committee noted that in recent weeks there had been a 
significant change in the political leadership of the Heart of the South West Local Authorities.  
The Chief Executive recapped on progress so far, the next steps and asked for the Scrutiny 
Committee to reaffirm how they would wish to engage with the emerging plan.

The Chief Executive also circulated in his paperwork the Heart of the South West Local 
Enterprise Partnership Delivery Plan 2019-20, the Heart of the South West Delivery 
Improvement Plan 2019-20 and Quarter 4 Dashboard which showed deliverables progress, 
financial progress and RAG ratings for specific projects.

In discussion Members asked questions and debated the following issues:

 concerns for the economy, including the need to bring in skills for higher level jobs to 
the area with greater focus on increasing training for local people and the ability to 
grow and retain local talent;

 the need to encourage more local small business start-ups;
 the challenge of delivering Capital Projects within timescales and the competitive bid 

process;
 business support being fragmented, making it difficult for local businesses to engage;
 the recognition of the delivery of housing being a key component in the delivery of 

infrastructure and the need to create more affordable homes to help retain young 
people in the south west;

 mobile technology (4G/5G rollout) and broadband and the delivery of the Connecting 
Devon and Somerset project;

 Climate Change being considered as part of the Local Industrial Strategy (LIS);
 changes to the working draft of the LIS including a greater emphasis on social 

inclusion, clean energy, changes in politics, improving conditions for businesses and 
further government interest;

 how the LEP engaged with agriculture, tourism, culture and the arts;
 Members expected to make Scrutiny input and to comment on the draft Local 

Industrial Strategy before it was finalised by the Joint Committee in September.  

It was MOVED by Councillor Williams, SECONDED by Councillor Morris and 

RESOLVED that 

(a) the draft Local Industrial Strategy be circulated to Members of the Joint Scrutiny 
Committee following the Joint Committee on 12 July in order to add value and 
contribute to the governance process; and

(b) the Productivity Strategy and Local Industrial Strategy be added to the Committee’s 
Terms of Reference. 

* 19  Acceleration of Housing Delivery in the Heart of the South West

(Councillor Hodgson attended in accordance with Standing Order 25(2) and spoke to this 
item).

The Committee considered a Report which had been presented to the HotSW Joint 
Committee by the Joint Committee Housing Task Force on the acceleration of housing 
delivery in the heart of the South West.

Page 2

Agenda Item 4



HEART OF THE SOUTH WEST (HOTSW) LOCAL ENTERPRISE PARTNERSHIP (LEP) 
JOINT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

20/06/19

The Report highlighted there was a clear desire to see quality housing growth delivered 
across the Joint Committee area as well as a growing sense of frustration that the solutions to 
a number of the issues holding growth back were not locally achievable. Whilst Councils were 
doing everything they could to address the blockages, there was a limit to what could be 
achieved without the support (and where necessary, intervention) of Government 
departments and agencies. 

The Committee noted that the Joint Committee had recognised housing as a priority objective 
to deliver the high-quality housing needed, and to find an avenue to engage with Government 
to unleash economic potential in the area and facilitate quality housing growth to provide for 
communities of the future.

The Joint Committee was recommended to pursue an area-based package to accelerate 
housing delivery which should include resourcing of a strategic delivery team (capacity 
funding), a major infrastructure delivery fund to unlock growth and a small schemes liquidity 
fund to bring forward stalled sites. The proposed package was set out in Appendix 1 to the 
Report. The Committee further noted that the Task Force was seeking to engage with Homes 
England and the MHCLG Growth and Delivery Unit to work with the Joint Committee on a 
housing deal. 

In discussion Members debated the following issues:
 

 the LEP was leading on the delivery of business, skills and innovation whilst Local 
Government had responsibility for the delivery of housing and infrastructure;

 the key challenge was around increasing supply and affordability of housing to enable 
businesses to recruit local people and encourage young people to remain in the 
South West e.g. concerns around employing carers in South Devon as they could not 
afford to live in the area; and

 the need to be more innovative in housing delivery, including focussing on key 
workers. 

* 20  Scrutiny Work Programme

In considering the work programme, it was RESOLVED that the work programme be agreed 
with the addition of items added at the meeting:

 Review of the Productivity Strategy and Performance review
 The Comprehensive Spending Review (if available in October)
 Digital Review – 4G/5G mobile and broadband rollout
 Local Industrial Strategy review

* 21  Dates of Future Meetings

Dates of Future Meetings were noted as:

Thursday 17 October 2019 @ 2.15pm
Thursday 13 February 2020 @ 2.15pm.

*DENOTES DELEGATED MATTER WITH POWER TO ACT

The Meeting started at 2.15 pm and finished at 4.35 pm

Page 3

Agenda Item 4





Joint Scrutiny LEP Review
October 2019
Once this report and recommendations have been discussed, any recommendations for 
change will need to go to the constituent authorities of the Heart of the South West LEP 
and if in agreement then they can be implemented.

1. Background
1.1 The Mary Ney report, Review of Local Enterprise Partnership Governance & 

Transparency, commissioned by the Government and published in October 2017 
identified the need to strengthen local arrangements for Overview and Scrutiny 
pertaining to LEPs. The report recommended that this was an area for report in each 
LEP’s Annual Conversation with Government. 

1.2 As part of its Annual Conversation process with central government, the HotSW LEP 
was identified as needing to strengthen its arrangements for public scrutiny. This was 
an area for concern because future LEP funding from Government depends on the LEP 
having compliant local arrangements in place in conjunction with local authorities.   

1.3 To date there have been limited examples or legislative attention given to the set up 
and operation of successful Scrutiny LEP arrangements. The guidance ‘Strengthened 
Local Enterprise Partnerships’ was received in August 2018 which broadly identified 
the role of local authorities in scrutinising LEPs, with scant detail:

Recommendations: 

1. That the HoTSW LEP Scrutiny Committee satisfies itself with the progress 
of the LEP to answer the challenge posed by government and whether it 
would wish to continue with the current arrangements.

2. That the Committee recommends to constituent authorities that it 
amend the terms of reference of the Committee as suggested in the body 
(part 4) of this report to include proactive Scrutiny of the Local Industrial 
Strategy.

3. To continue to increase transparency the Committee undertakes to 
webcast future meetings of the Scrutiny Committee.

4. The Committee considers the need to have public participation at LEP 
Scrutiny and determines whether it would wish to adopt the practice 
currently in place at Devon County Council for Scrutiny public 
participation. 

5. Continue work to improve the effectiveness of the Scrutiny Committee

Page 5

Agenda Item 6

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/655188/Review_of_local_enterprise_partnership_governance_and_transparency.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/655188/Review_of_local_enterprise_partnership_governance_and_transparency.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/728058/Strengthened_Local_Enterprise_Partnerships.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/728058/Strengthened_Local_Enterprise_Partnerships.pdf


 ‘The Government remains committed to implementing the recommendations of this 
Report in full so there will continue to be a focus on having effecting local 
arrangements in place to scrutinise the LEP.’
The Statutory Scrutiny Guidance published in May 2019 was notably light on 
covering Scrutiny arrangements for LEPs. 

1.4 The formulation of a Joint Scrutiny Committee across the HoTSW area to carry out 
effective Scrutiny was identified as the solution to the need for robust scrutiny. At this 
time there were two other options considered; continuing existing arrangements 
through Devon and Somerset County Council Scrutiny or to use the HotSW Joint 
Committee to scrutinise the LEP. Both options were rejected for not providing 
consistent or rigorous enough Scrutiny.  

1.5 Appendix 1 of this report reproduces the terms of reference with which the 
Committee was established, including membership, focus and meeting frequency.

1.6 The Committee has now been in operation for one year. In preparing this report views 
were sought from the Membership of the group as well as canvassing National County 
and Unitary Councils to understand their Scrutiny arrangements for the LEP. The 
conclusions from both exercises can be found later in this report. Initial views appear 
to be that the current arrangements are having some impact, but have further to go, 
and that HoTSW LEP Scrutiny arrangements are more developed than in many 
authorities. 

1.7 This report proposes some changes to arrangements to strengthen the transparency 
and quality of Scrutiny but suggests that the set up, membership and frequency of 
meetings is maintained.  Any substantive changes agreed in principle by the HotSW 
LEP are of course subject to the approval of the constituent authorities and may 
require wider consideration across the Heart of the South West Councils. 

2. Activity
2.1 To date the Committee has met in public three times, as follows:
2 Nov 2018 2.15 pm 
14 Feb 2019 2.15 pm
20 Jun 2019 2.15 pm
During these meetings the Committee has scrutinised the following substantive topics:

- Performance of the LEP;
- Inclusive Growth;
- The Local Industrial Strategy;
- Acceleration of Housing Delivery in the HoTSW area. 

2.2 The attendance at Committee was mentioned as an area for improvement, as follows:
- Friday 2 November:  11 present, 3 apols
- 14 Feb 2019: 10 present, 6 apols
- 20 June 2019: 5 present, 5 apols

2.3 On the 9th January 2019 representatives from HoTSW LEP met with government for 
the Annual Performance Review. For the first time the Scrutiny Chair and Head of 
Scrutiny were invited to this meeting.  The Annual Performance Review is the process 
by which Government monitors LEP achievements, and is measured against three 
themes; Governance, Delivery and Strategy. 

2.4 In considering any change to the current set up and arrangements the Head of 
Scrutiny invited officers from the national County and Unitary Scrutiny Network to 
share their LEP Scrutiny arrangements. These are summarised in the table below, and 
anonymised. 

Page 6

Agenda Item 6

https://democracy.devon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=456&MId=3417&Ver=4
https://democracy.devon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=456&MId=3570&Ver=4
https://democracy.devon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=456&MId=3571&Ver=4


How do you hold your LEP to account? 
- Dedicated joint Committee
- Existing Committee
- Task group (public/private)

Are there any examples where Scrutiny of 
the LEP has been particularly effective 
(influencing decision making, putting issues 
on the agenda, etc)

Would you say that your LEP Scrutiny 
arrangements are sufficient?

Do you have any plans to change 
them in the future? 

Existing Committee No No Yes, we need to take another look 
at this and begin scrutinising the 
work of the LEP to a far greater 
degree

We do not have a standing Scrutiny of 
our LEP instead we focus on specific 
issues (at current Committee). 

We are looking at including the LEP in a 
future Growth Agenda scrutiny.  
Representatives from the LEP are involved 
in our annual budget scrutiny

Our councillors are content with the current approach.  

No direct Scrutiny of LEP activity – this 
is largely down to the fact that the 
LEPs aren’t coterminous with the 
County.
the LEP is currently held to account 
through a joint private task group with 
the Borough Council (4 Cllrs from 
each). 

It has been particularly effective at 
establishing a good conversation with the 
LEP. We have good buy in from the LEP 
Director and Board Chair, who value the 
transparency that OS can bring. They are 
good at bringing to their meetings 
particular strategies and questioning the 
LEP on their effectiveness.

there is perhaps a bit of a gap in 
effectiveness at looking at projects. 
Perhaps because they lack the 
expertise to critically assess them 
properly and/or there is still some 
confusion amongst members over 
how responsible the LEP is for a 
project

we have begun consulting on the 
potential to revise how we engage 
with the LEP. Currently working on 
report for the task group reviewing 
options.  Particular concerns have 
also been raised by the LEP 
Director over the lack of holding 
them to account in public, which 
we may be considering in the 
future.

Scrutiny of the LEP falls with our 
Economic Growth and Development 
Committee 

The Council has three Portfolio Holders who form part of the LEP Board.  The 
Portfolio Holder for Economic Growth attends the Economic Growth & Development 
Overview and Scrutiny Meetings and provides service updates at these meetings.  

The Committee is currently 
considering inviting the Chair of 
the LEP to be a participating 
observer.

P
age 7

A
genda Item

 6



3. How does HotSW Scrutiny arrangements compare 
and what needs to change? 

Arrangements and Set up 

3.1 From the authorities that responded, most of LEP Scrutiny is conducted through 
existing Scrutiny Committees, with other areas holding closed session task groups 
and one area not holding the LEP to account.  It seems unusual to set up a 
Committee solely for scrutinising the LEP, as is done in the HotSW. With limited 
direction from MHCLG or government generally and with the existing Committee 
structure being deemed not robust enough for the HoTSW area it will be interesting 
to see if other areas follow suit. Since the HoTSW arrangements were developed to 
address the Scrutiny deficit it seems logical to continue with the joint Committee as 
the most effective way to scrutinise the LEP. 

Transparency 

3.2 We did not ask other Councils about how transparent the work of the LEP was to 
scrutiny, although this was hinted at in some of the answers, with a mix of how 
effective this was. It goes without saying that conducting public Scrutiny will help to 
increase public awareness and transparency. At Devon County Council we routinely 
both webcast Scrutiny Committee meetings and have an opportunity for public 
participation. Webcasting meetings does enable people who are not able to attend 
in person to review and listen to the debate and discussion. This is equally true of 
Councillors or businesses as well as members of the public. This report recommends 
that webcasting is extended to include the LEP Scrutiny Joint Committee. 

3.3 Regarding public participation this is a matter for the Committee to discuss in more 
detail. The public participation policy for Devon County Council is appended to this 
report (Appendix 2). This allows fifteen minutes at the start of the meeting for 
members of the public to speak about a topic that is on the agenda for that meeting. 
The Committee should satisfy itself that members of the public would be engaged 
enough to be able to address the complexities of the high-level strategies that are 
subject to Scrutiny (e.g. contribution to the Local Industrial Strategy). 

Impact 

3.4 There are limited examples where Scrutiny has had a tangible impact on the 
operation of the LEP.  It is interesting how one authority involves the LEP in their 
budget setting process. Ultimately for the HoTSW LEP, the establishment of the Joint 
Scrutiny Committee enabled the LEP to meet its compliance with the requirements 
from MHCLG, this in turn supported the continuation of LEP activity. Without the 
creation of the joint Scrutiny Committee it is possible that this may not have 
happened.    

3.5 For 19/20 the HoTSW joint Scrutiny Committee demonstrating impact on areas of 
LEP activity will continue to be a challenge.  The table below gives detailed measures 
for successes that have been synthesised from comments from current Committee 
members.  These lay out a specific list by which effectiveness of the joint Scrutiny 
Committee could be measured in future. 

3.6 The other two questions on the table below detail what has worked well – which 
seem to be the set up and running of the meetings as well as the fact that the 
Committee has been established. The ‘what could be improved’ will be taken by the 
Head of Scrutiny and used to improve operations over the next year. 

Page 8

Agenda Item 6



Views from the current HoTSW LEP Joint Scrutiny Committee

What has worked well?
 Masterclasses and information – with Members having a much 

better understanding of the work of the LEP and their strategy for 
investment. 

 The technical logistics, support and running of the meetings. 
 Ample opportunity for Members to speak – no ‘battle for airtime’
 Having the Good for a democratically elected body to scrutinise 

this quango.
 Having the opportunity to comment on the criteria for lending.

How to judge success over next year?

 Positive and impactful relationship between Scrutiny and the LEP, evidenced by change or amendments to policy or decisions. 
 Being cited in advance of priorities, decisions and strategy arising for the LEP 
 Clarity on the Chair of the Board and LEP’s ambitions and how Scrutiny can add value particularly to investment strategy. 
 Representing the ambition and concerns of the South-West’s residents
 Demonstrable contribution to productivity and growth by the LEP
 Increasing democracy in regional government
 Scrutiny to build a culture of learning and improvement, taking account of best practice nationally

What could be improved?
 Focus on the LIS and the value for money that the LEP affords.
 More Members attending the Masterclass.
 Presentations need to be shorter (circa 10-15 mins) 
 Get to practical, active items where Scrutiny can add value including 

financial outcomes, 
 Look at real examples of organisations that have received funding, as well 

as those who have been rejected. 
 Focus on producing recommendations that are relevant, timely and useful 

for LEP decision-making.

P
age 9

A
genda Item

 6



4. Amended Terms of Reference

4.1 At the joint Scrutiny meeting of the 20th June, under the Local Industrial Strategy 
Item the Committee resolved to change the as follows: 

(b)   the Productivity Strategy and Local Industrial Strategy be added to the 
Committee’s Terms of Reference. 

The rational for this was that it currently was not mentioned by name and there was 
also a sense that the Committee was only able to review decisions that had already 
been taken. 

4.2 Following from this request, and the information gathered as part of this review this 
report has reproduced the terms of reference of the Committee with suggested 
amendments highlighted below:

The Joint Scrutiny Committee provides strategic overview and Scrutiny of the 
activities of the Heart of the South West (HotSW) Local Enterprise Partnership 
(LEP)
 
In meeting its purpose, the Joint Scrutiny Committee will be specifically charged 
with:
- The review of strategic decisions made by the LEP Board;
- The review of progress of programmes under the management of the LEP to 
identify barriers to progress, good practice and possible improvements to the 
LEP’s programme management function, notwithstanding the ability of Local 
Authorities to scrutinise individual programmes of delivery which impact on 
their communities;
- Scrutiny of the development and delivery of the Strategic Economic Plan, and 
the Productivity Strategy, and Local Industrial Strategy; and
- To review LEP performance and effectiveness and consider any comparative 
data the Joint Committee deems necessary.

5. Conclusion
The Heart of the South West Local Economic Partnership Joint Scrutiny Committee has had a 
reasonably successful first year in operation. By necessity some of the Committee time has 
been taken up in understanding the workings of the LEP and appreciating the priorities. With 
the development of the Local Industrial Strategy Scrutiny has had some opportunity to 
comment, but this could be developed further to better demonstrate the impact of early 
Scrutiny involvement in key decisions and developments. When compared to other local 
authorities it does appear that HoTSW LEP Scrutiny is ahead of many authorities in trying to 
get to grips with public Scrutiny with issues that transcend the boarders of individual local 
authorities. It will be interesting to see if Central Government strengthen LEP Scrutiny 
powers and increase local accountability. 

Page 10

Agenda Item 6



APPENDIX 1
Heart of the South West Local Enterprise Partnership Joint Scrutiny Committee
Terms of Reference

1. Purpose

The Joint Scrutiny Committee will provide strategic overview and Scrutiny of the 
activities of the Heart of the South West (HotSW) Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) 
to complement the existing Council’s Scrutiny arrangements.

2.  Roles, Duties and Responsibilities

In meeting its purpose, the Joint Scrutiny Committee will be specifically charged with:

 The review of strategic decisions made by the LEP Board;
 The review of progress of programmes under the management of the LEP to 

identify barriers to progress, good practice and possible improvements to the 
LEP’s programme management function, notwithstanding the ability of Local 
Authorities to scrutinise individual programmes of delivery which impact on their 
communities; 

 Scrutiny of the delivery of the Strategic Economic Plan and the Productivity 
Strategy; and

 To review LEP performance and consider any comparative data the Joint 
Committee deems necessary.

3.  Scrutiny Function

The Joint Scrutiny Committee will provide a new joint Scrutiny function and the Joint 
Committees constituent authorities will be asked to delegate the strategic overview of 
the LEP functions to the Joint Scrutiny Committee (this will not remove the right of 
local authorities to scrutinise matters relating to programme delivery that impact on 
the people within those communities).

4.  Membership / Substitute Members

The membership of the Joint Scrutiny Committee will be:

Devon County Council (4 Members)
Plymouth City Council (2 Members)
Torbay Council (2 Members)
Somerset County Council (4 Members)
Devon Districts (3 Members)
Somerset Districts (2 Members)

In line with the requirements of the Local Government and Housing Act 1979, political 
proportionality has been considered and is not considered appropriate to apply to the 
collective membership of the Joint Scrutiny Committee. However, where a Council is 
appointing three or more Members, political proportionality will apply to those 
appointments in line with the legislation. For less than three, each constituent 

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



authority will be free to consider their own political proportionality in making their 
appointments to the Joint Committee on an annual basis.

The level of representation proposed for the County authorities is considered 
appropriate because of their administrative authority duties in respect of the LEP.

Members of the Executive / Cabinet from constituent authorities are precluded from 
sitting as members of the Joint Scrutiny Committee. 

District Council representatives should be appointed from authorities not already 
represented on the HotSW Local Enterprise Partnership Board and also should not 
be County Councillors.

Constituent authorities may make substitutions in accordance with their own
procedures where one of their Members is unable to attend any meeting of
the Joint Scrutiny Committee.  Substitutes do not need to be named, but as a 
courtesy the administering secretariat should be advised of the name of the 
substitute at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting.

Reflecting the approach to engage with stakeholders across the LEP Area, the 
Scrutiny Committee will be able to invite to meetings witnesses which it considers will 
contribute to the delivery of an effective Scrutiny function.

5.  Work Programme

The Joint Scrutiny Committee will maintain a work programme of activities.

Constituent Authority Scrutiny Committees may ask the Joint Scrutiny Committee to 
consider matters for inclusion in the work programme.  The final decision will a matter 
for the Joint Scrutiny Committee.  District Council Scrutiny Committees not directly 
represented on the Joint Scrutiny Committee should do this through the District 
Councils Members appointed to the Committee.

6.  Reporting Arrangements

The work and recommendations of the Joint Scrutiny Committee will be regularly 
reported to the Heart of the South West LEP Board. 

Members may make reports to their “home” constituent authority in accordance with 
their own governance procedures.

7.  Agendas, reports and minutes

The agenda and supporting papers will be published and circulated at least five clear 
working days in advance of meetings.

The minutes of any meetings will be published on the administering secretariat’s 
website and circulated to partner organisations as soon as practicable.

The Committee will operate under the Standing Orders of the administering authority.

Page 12

Agenda Item 6



The HotSW LEP will provide a link to the agendas and minutes of the Joint Scrutin 
yCommittee on its website.

8.  Frequency of meetings

The date, time and venue of meetings will be fixed in advance by the Joint Scrutiny 
Committee and an annual schedule of meetings agreed. 

The Joint Scrutiny Committee will meet three times per year (March, July and 
November). Dates will be published on the website of the administering authority. 

Additional meetings may be convened at the request of the Chair.

9.  Election of Chair

The Chair will be elected on an annual basis by Members of the Joint Scrutiny 
Committee.

10.  Quorum

The quorum of the Committee shall be one quarter of Members, equating to a 
quorum of 5.

11.  Declarations of interest

Declarations of Interest will be made in accordance with the Government Guidance. 

Joint Scrutiny Committee Members are subject to the Code of Conduct for Elected 
Members adopted by the Constituent Authority that nominated them including the 
requirement to declare relevant interests at formal meetings of the Joint Scrutiny 
Committee.

12.  Voting

In principle recommendations will be reached by consensus, but if a vote is required 
it will be by a simple majority of all members present.

Where there are equal votes the Chair of the meeting will have the casting vote.

13.  Duty to attend, cooperate and respond

The Joint Scrutiny Committee may require by invitation the Chair of the LEP Board 
and the Chief Executive of the LEP to appear before it to explain (in relation to all 
aspects of the Committee’s work) the performance of the LEP and / or any particular 
decision or series of decisions.  The Chair and Chief Executive have agreed to attend 
if so required, unless they have a legitimate reason for not doing so.

Following each meeting of the Joint Scrutiny Committee, the Committee’s 
recommendations will be submitted to the LEP Board for consideration.  The LEP 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



Board will be required to consider those recommendations at its next meeting and 
respond to the Joint Scrutiny Committee indicating what (if any) action the LEP Board 
proposes to take. The response should be made within 28 days of the LEP Board 
meeting and will be published.

14.  Code of conduct

Members of the Joint Scrutiny Committee are expected to observe the “Seven 
Principles of Public Life” (the ‘Nolan’ principles) and shall be bound by their own 
authority’s Code of Conduct in their work on the Joint Scrutiny Committee.

Members are expected to act in the interests of the Joint Scrutiny Committee, except 
where this would result in a breach of a statutory or other duty to their Constituent 
Authority or would be in breach of their Constituent Authority’s Code of Conduct.

15.  Access to information

Joint Scrutiny Committee meetings are regarded as a Council Committee for the 
purposes of Access to Information Act. 

Meetings will be open to the press and public and the Freedom of Information Act 
provisions shall apply to all business.

Page 14

Agenda Item 6



Appendix 2: Scrutiny Public Participation Policy at 
Committee

Any resident (of the administrative county) of Devon may speak on any substantive matter listed on 
the Agenda of any Scrutiny Committee (i.e. other than matters for information or administrative 
business); excluding the Annual Joint Scrutiny Committee meeting where separate arrangements 
apply.

Any person wishing so to do must register their desire to speak, in writing (by letter, fax or email), by 
0900 hours on the (working) day immediately preceding the day of meeting of the relevant Scrutiny 
Committee - giving a brief outline of the point(s) or issue(s) they wish to raise.  If more than one person 
wishes to make the same point or make similar representations, those persons may be asked to agree 
a spokesman to make a single presentation.

Any statements/representation shall be limited to 3 minutes per person, within an overall time limit of 
15 minutes. Any and all such statements/representations will be taken together at the beginning of 
the relevant Scrutiny Committee, immediately after consideration of any urgent business. If there are 
more than 5 persons wishing to speak the Chairman may reduce the amount of time for each person. 
For best effect, any statement/representations should be short and concise and must not be 
defamatory or offensive. No writing or photographic material may be circulated around a meeting 
during any presentation. 

Direct, specific, questions to Members or Officers will not be accepted but, in making any 
statement/representation, a person may of course pose a general inquiry or suggestion that they would 
wish the Committee to have regard to in the course of its subsequent deliberations. There will be no 
debate on or response given to any statements/representations made at that time: the Committee will 
have regard to all issues so raised during its consideration of the substantive matter later in that 
meeting.

[NB: The introduction of any form of public speaking at Scrutiny Committees does not preclude or 
prevent a Scrutiny Committee or Task Group from inviting members of  the public or interested parties 
to give evidence (as happens now)  when gathering data etc., for a particular piece of work.] 

In addition and both as a means of ‘advertising’ this facility and encouraging the public to submit views 
to any Scrutiny Committee reviewing or examining a specific topic,  the arrangements set out above 
could be more widely promulgated through the media/social media to encourage wider public 
participation and involvement in Scrutiny activity generally .. using a form or words along the following 
lines (which could also be included on the agenda for all Scrutiny Committee meetings) viz:  

‘Devon’s residents may attend and speak at any meeting of a County Council Scrutiny Committee 
when it is reviewing any specific matter or examining the provision of services or facilities as listed 
on the agenda for that particular meeting.

Scrutiny Committees set aside 15 minutes at the beginning of each meeting to allow anyone who 
has registered to speak on any such item. Speakers are normally allowed 3 minutes each.

Anyone wishing to speak is requested to register in writing with ….……[insert contact details]….… 
by 0900 hours on  the day before the meeting…  indicating which item they wish to speak on and 
giving a brief outline of the issues/ points they wish to make. 

Alternatively, any Member of the public may at any time submit their views on any matter to be 
considered by a Scrutiny Committee at a meeting or included in its work Programme direct to the 
Chairman or Members of that Committee or via the Democratic Services & Scrutiny Secretariat 
(insert email..). Members of the public may also suggest topics (see: 

Page 15

Agenda Item 6



https://new.devon.gov.uk/democracy/Committee-meetings/scrutiny-Committees/scrutiny-work-
programme/

All Scrutiny Committee agenda are published at least seven days before the meeting on the 
Council’s website: at http://www.devon.gov.uk/cma.htm ’

Page 16

Agenda Item 6

https://new.devon.gov.uk/democracy/committee-meetings/scrutiny-committees/scrutiny-work-programme/
https://new.devon.gov.uk/democracy/committee-meetings/scrutiny-committees/scrutiny-work-programme/
http://www.devon.gov.uk/cma.htm

	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	6 Joint Scrutiny LEP Review

